
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 08, 2019 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 
1. Announcement of Christmas Lighting Contest Winners 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
2. Regular Board Minutes, December 11, 2018 

Special Meeting Minutes, December 27, 2018 

Special Event Liquor License – Edesia Kitchen – Kid’s Pasta Project 

Mayor’s Report 
3. Appointment to the Planning Commission 

Staff Reports 
 Town Administrators Report 

 Public Works Report 

 Police Department Report 

 Town Treasurer Report 

     4. Final Disbursement Approval for December 2018 

Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 

      5. Memorandum of Understanding – DMEA/Elevate Public Access 

     6. Ordinance 2019-01 De-Annexation/Disconnection Municipal Code Addition 

New Business 
7. Aaron W. Papke, dba Thomas Waldo’s – Transfer of Ownership – Liquor License 

8. Resolution 2019-01 – Designating Official Posting Location and Official Publication Newspaper 

9. Resolution 2019-02 – Mutual of Omaha 457 (b) Plan Amendment  

10. Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and Medical 

Information Privacy – (Discussion Only) 

11. Bill Brunner – Presentation to the Board  

Committee Reports 
 Finance & Personnel 

 Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

 Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

 Tree Board 

Adjournment 
 

  

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

3



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 4, 2019 
 

 

Announcement of Christmas Lighting Contest Winners 
 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

1. 225 Clark (we loved the Christmas Pigs) 
2. 510 Box Elder Avenue 
3. 25 Alder Court 

 
Honorable Mentions: 
1.The Ferguson Household We wanted to know if we could have it listed as a one not to miss if you 
are headed out to look at holiday lights.  
2.The Kellogg’s House 
3.The Schaefer/Geisler House 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 4, 2019 
 

 

Regular Board Minutes, December 11, 2018 

Special Meeting Minutes, December 27, 2018 

Special Event Liquor License – Edesia Kitchen – Kid’s Pasta Project 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

CLERK: All fees paid. 

CHIEF: No issues noted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

December 11, 2018 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
The Regular Meeting of the Town Board of Trustees held Tuesday, December 11, 2018 was 

called to order at 6:30 PM by Mayor Charles Stewart, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Trustees present were as follows: 

 

Charles Stewart 

Mary Bachran 

Bill Bear 

Chelsea Bookout 

Karen Budinger 

Samira Hart 

Dave Knutson 

 

A quorum was present, and Mayor Charles Stewart proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Trustee Hart, supported by Trustee Bachran to approve the agenda as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Announcements 

None 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
 None 

 

Consent Agenda 
Regular Minutes November 27, 2018 

Aspen Yoga, Inc dba Louie's Pizza My Heart Liquor License Renewal 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Hart to accept the consent agenda as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

Mayor’s Report 
Governmental Affairs Committee Appointment - Trustee Knutson 

 

Planning Commission Letter of Interest Deadline – the Trustee seat is filled by Trustee 

6



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Bear.  The Planning Commission seats are a Mayoral appointment, with a tentative meeting set 

for January 15, 2019.  Mayor Stewart set the deadline for letters of interest January 2, 2019 by 

4:30pm. 

 

Regular Meeting Cancellation - Official cancellation of meeting set for December 25
th

 

 

Appointment of Christmas Light Contest Judges - Trustee Bookout and family volunteered.  

Staff Reports 

 Town Administrator’s Report 

USDOT grant application was not awarded. Administrator Knight thanked Elaine Brett 

and Ben Lehman for work on grant application. 

 

Mayor Stewart noted the Board gives opportunity for the public to ask staff questions, 

which is a privilege and opportunity to ask questions and will proceed only in a civil 

fashion. 

 Public Works Report 

Sidewalk to bridge complete 

 

Rio Grande ditch box and multiple minor sidewalk repairs are underway 

 

1MG roof repair is complete – One (1) side panel needs further repair 

 

Tank disinfection will be complete this week 

 

Plan to start filling the tank the last week of December 

 

 Police Department Report 

November 30th - Officer Rogers resigned for personal reasons.  Have offered full-time 

position to Officer Winnett 

 

Attended several meetings regarding proposed Delta County sales tax increase for public 

safety. A presentation will be forthcoming 

 

 Town Treasurer Report 

  

 Reviewed disbursements with Finance Officer and Committee 

 

Interviewed candidates for auditing firms 

 

Sending good thoughts and happy holidays to all 

Disbursements 

7



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve $91,657.18 accounts payable, 

$6,707.07 payroll tax, $17,812.27 payroll direct deposit, and $1,974.87credit card payment. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Hart for Treasurer King and the Finance 

Committee to review and approve disbursements through December 2018, and bring to Board in 

January for final approval. – Motion carried with five (5) ayes and one (1) nay. 

Unfinished Business 

Independent Auditing Firm Selection 

 

 Town received three (3) proposals for auditing services.  The Finance Committee, 

Treasurer King, Administrator Knight, and Finance Officer Jones held interviews with 

two (2) the firms.  Treasurer King provided history of original request for proposal (rfp) 

and the second rfp process.   

 

Administrator Knight added that following the two (2) interviews all involved were 

pleased with the interviews.  Staff, Treasurer, and Finance Committee recommends the 

Board approve Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co, P.C. 

 

Trustee Knutson supports the recommendation and is impressed with the communication 

plan.  

  

Motion by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Bookout to accept the proposal from 

Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co, P.C. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Final Town Hall Update for 2018 – Community Room Carpet 

 

 Town Hall project updates have been discussed during previous meetings. The estimate 

for carpet replacement in the community room is beyond the purchasing policy approval. 

Staff requests the Board approve the replacement quote for carpet as presented.  

Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Hart to approve Guthrie's estimate as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

  

New Business 

North Fork Cellars LLC Liquor Sales Room 
  

Lillia McClure and Jessica Zimmerman were present on behalf of the applicant.  They 

presented the plan for the location and sales. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding foot traffic, seating, sales tax and the difference between liquor 

 sales room and a regular license. Motion by Trustee Knutson, seconded by Trustee Bachran 

to submit without objection as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

8



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Resolution 2018-18 Budget 

 

Trustee Bachran commended staff on work preparing the budget.  

 Motion by Trustee Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to adopt Resolution 2018-18 – the 

2019 Budget. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Resolution 2018-19 Mill Levy 
The resolution sets mill levy at 8.322 mills. 

 Motion by Trustee Bachran, seconded by Trustee Bookout to adopt Resolution 2018-19 – 

setting the 2019 mill levy. 

 

Memorandum of Understanding – School Resource Officer 

The proposed agreement was included in the packet.  Chief Ferguson has been working with 

School District for several months to get a SRO in the schools.  The school district will 

provide $20,000 a year for the police department budget and Chief Ferguson will schedule an 

officer in the school a minimum of three days a week. 

 

Administrator Knight added that the anticipated $20,000 is included in the 2019 budget and 

Thanked Chief Ferguson and the school district for working cooperatively. Trustee Knutson  

questioned how the SRO would be disciplined or released from the school.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding how issues with the SRO will be mediated.  

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, supported by Trustee Budinger to accept the agreement with the 

additional wording to include the SRO and Police Chief and district superintendent in any 

mediation. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Suzanne Watson – Delta Avenue - questioned how the funds were being provided to the  

police department. 

  

Building Department – Colorado Code Consulting Contract 

 Staff requests Board acceptance of the annual contract with Colorado Code Consulting.   

 

 Discussion ensued regarding how building inspections are scheduled.  

 

  Bill Brunner – 2
nd

 Street – Questioned if the contract gives the building official authority 

over zoning regulations. Attorney Nerlin added that the contract is for building code 

enforcement, although zoning does dictate busing regulations. Suzanne Watson – Delta 

Avenue - questioned which codes the inspector follows. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bachran, supported by Trustee Hart to approve the annual contract with 

Colorado Code Consulting and authorize Administrator Knight to sign on behalf of the 

Town. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

The Board recessed for five (5) minutes.  

 

9



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Resolution 2018 – 17 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 Administrator Knight provided history regarding multiple meetings and participation in 

the Hazard Mitigation Plan. The proposed resolution affirms the Town participation. 

Chief Ferguson reported the plan was last updated in 2009. In case of a natural disaster 

the Town must be participating jurisdiction to receive state and federal assistance.  

 

Suzanne Watson – Delta Avenue -  questioned if any grant funds may be available to the 

Town through the program.  Trustee Bear explained that funding would be available for 

hazard mitigation work following an emergency. 

  

Motion by Trustee Hart, supported by Trustee Bear to adopt Resolution 2018-17, Multi-

Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Memorandum of Understanding – DMEA/Elevate Public Access 

 Attorney Nerlin provided an overview regarding Elevate public access memorandum. 

 

 Discussion ensued regarding the equipment for broadcasting. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, supported by Trustee Bookout to table approval to next 

meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ordinance 2019-TBD De-Annexation/Disconnection Municipal Code Addition 

 Mayor Stewart provided information regarding state statute regulations to allow a 

property owner to petition to de-annex from Town, the proposed ordinance puts in place 

a process for applying and reviewing de-annexation. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding why a person would want to de-annex and how staff handles 

out-of-town utility accounts. 

 

Patty Walsh-Oenick – O Road – questioned in the policy can be used to Town's 

advantage to annex an area. Attorney Nerlin stated it should not be used as a negotiation 

tool. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Hart to approve the proposed ordinance 

and set for a second reading. Motion carried unanimously.  

  

Resolution 2018-20 Town Fee Schedule 

 The proposed resolution is necessary to include fees for the disconnection/de-annexation 

application process.  The other resolution adjustment is staff requested modification to 

fees for Public Records Request. Discussion ensued regarding fees for electronic 

requests. Attorney Nerlin noted the price per page is not included but costs for time does 

apply for actual staff time.  

 

Mayor Stewart - questioned if doubling the fee is a punishment for exercising the right to 

apply to de-annex and may seem prejudicial to the applicant.  

 

10



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Bill Brunner – Second Street -  questioned records request fee change and stated he 

believes the policy is to intimidate a person when making a request for public records.  

 

Suzanne Watson – Delta Avenue – suggested more documents be placed on the website.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding online materials, process for filing a records request, 

current, suggested, and potential fee increases. 

  

 Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Knutson to adopt Resolution 2018-20, 

with disconnection fee set at $500 plus actual costs. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Tree Board Advisory Member Appointment 

 Trustee Hart resigned as Trustee advisor due to schedule conflicts.  The advisory member 

must be a Board member and is a requirement of the municipal ordinance. 

Trustee Bachran volunteered and was so appointed. 

  

Bill Brunner – Presentation to the Board  
 Attorney Nerlin read a statement for the record regarding the history of the court case and 

findings of fact. The Board of Trustees has not made a final decision on how to proceed 

and does not anticipate discussion from Board of staff regarding the agenda item.  

Mayor Stewart opened the floor to Mr. Brunner.  

Mr. Brunner read a prepared statement to the Board against appealing court ruling in case 

and encouraged the Board to seek an unbiased opinion. 

  

Committee Reports 

 Finance & Personnel – nothing to report 

 Public Works/Utilities/Facilities – nothing to report 

 Governmental Affairs/Public Safety – meeting scheduled for tomorrow morning at 9am 

 S2C - Executive Committee – nothing to report 

 Tree Board – nothing to report 

Executive Session 
Motion by Trustee Hart, supported by Trustee Bachran to enter executive session for a 

conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 

questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); continued discussion specific to Case 2017 

CV 30118 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, & Judgement. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 Entered executive session at 8:57pm. 

Returned to open session at 955 pm. 

Those in attendance were Mayor Stewart, Trustees Bookout, Bachran, Bear, Budinger, 

Hart, and Knutson, Town Administrator Knight, Town Attorney Nerlin, Town Clerk, 

Ferguson, and via telephone Special Council Poppe. 

 

No issues noted. 

 

11



 

  

DECEMBER 11, 2018 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

Motion by Trustee Hart, supported by Trustee Bookout to extend the meeting until 

10:10pm. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Motion by Trustee Bookout, supported by Trustee Bear to direct special council not to 

file an appeal and respond to affidavit of fees as discussed. Motion carried unanimously.   

  

Adjournment 
Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Bachran. Meeting adjourned at 10:10pm. 
  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

12



 

  

DECEMBER 27, 2018 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Special Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

December 27, 2018 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
Board Present Were: 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustees: 

Bookout 

Bear 

Budinger 

Knutson 

Approval of Agenda 
Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Budinger to approve the agenda 

as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Stewart, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

 Executive Session For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving 

legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) 

  

 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Budinger to enter in to 

executive session for a conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving 

legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) specific to 

Mr. Brunner Legal Fees. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Entered in to executive session at 4:05pm. 

 Returned from executive session at 4:35pm.  

 

Those in attendance were Mayor Stewart, Trustees Bookout, Bear, Budinger, and 

Knutson, Town Administrator Knight, Town Attorney Nerlin, Town Clerk, Ferguson, 

and via telephone Special Council Poppe. 

 

No issues noted. 

 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, supported by Trustee Budinger to accept settlement 

offer in the amount of $30,000. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bear, 

13



 

  

DECEMBER 27, 2018 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Budinger to authorize 

payment be issued before end of year. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 
  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Appointment to the Planning Commission 

Summary:   

Appointment to the Planning Commission to fill the vacated seat of Dave Knutson. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



22



23



24



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 4, 2019 
 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

25



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 4, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

26



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 4, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   12/17/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:25:10 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
17:15:22 CIVIL PROBLEM

Address
200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

23:36:49 ANIMAL PROBLEM 600 BLOCK OF OAK AVE, Paonia, PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   12/18/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:36:10 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
11:03:50 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
14:07:03 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO 
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   12/20/18
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
10:11:55 SUSPICIOUS 300 BLOCK OF 3RD STREET, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
12:47:38 SUSPICIOUS 70 BLOCK SAMUEL WADE ROAD, Paonia,

CO
PPD PPD

18:48:10 WELFARE CHECK 3RD ST & GRAND AVE; Rio Grande 
Mexican Restaurant, Paonia, CO

PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   12/21/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:16:14 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD

12:16:24 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD VW
15:02:23 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE; FIRST STATE BANK, 
Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

16:33:17 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD DIST3 VW
16:51:00 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
17:01:53 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
18:22:20 Medical/transfe

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
3RD ST, Paonia, CO
VISTA DR; CREEK VISTA SENIOR 
APTS; 12, Paonia, CO

PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

Date Occurred:   12/23/18
Time Nature
02:47:25 SUSPICIOUS

Address
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO

Agency Loctn Dsp 
PPD PPD 

28



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:36:12 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
13:20:01 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 CIT
15:22:49 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 CIT
19:00:25 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
22:11:36 911

Address
400 BLOCK OF 5TH STREET, Paonia, CO 
300 5TH ST, Paonia, CO
70 SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO 
600 2ND ST, Paonia, CO
WILLOW RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   12/24/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
23:07:15 SUSPICIOUS

Address
PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   12/25/18
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:09:49 MISSING PERSON OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   12/26/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:00:27 ALARM PPD PPD
11:08:49 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
13:21:41 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
14:06:19 TrafficAccident

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
3RD ST, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
CRAWFORD RD & BACK RIVER RD, 
Paonia, CO

PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   12/27/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:06:13 Traffic Stop

Address
BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE ROAD, 
Paonia, CO

PPD DIST3 CIT

21:04:24 ANIMAL CONTROL 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   12/28/18
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
14:29:10 Traffic Stop 70 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE ROAD,

Paonia, CO
PPD PPD CIT

16:52:58 AGENCY ASSIST HIGHWAY 133 MP8, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   12/29/18

29



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 12/15/18` and `00:00:01 01/01/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:36:23 AGENCY ASSIST MILE PSOT 8 HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD
10:48:39 Traffic Stop 600 BLOCK OF 5TH STREET, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
10:58:45 DEATH INVESTGTN RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
11:49:16 ANIMAL PROBLEM 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW
16:45:15 SUSPICIOUS 2ND ST; DONS SUPERMART, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   12/30/18
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:53:25 SUSPICIOUS MATHEWS LN/Niagara AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD
19:36:43 Traffic Stop 200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   12/31/18
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:06:43 Noise Complaint

Address
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Total reported: 40 VW=4, WW=1, CIT=8

30



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Final Disbursement Approval for December 2018 

Summary:   

Approval for the end of year disbursements for 2018.  

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Memorandum of Understanding – DMEA/Elevate Public Access 

Summary:   

Continued agenda item from December 11
th

. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



Elevate Public Access MOU Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING CONCERNING THE PROVISION OF A 

PUBLIC ACCESS, EDUCATIONAL ACCESS AND GOVERNMENT ACCESS 

CHANNEL BY DMEA UTILITIES SERVICES, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED 

LIABILITY COMPANY, TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING CONCERNING THE PROVISION OF A 

PUBLIC ACCESS, EDUCATIONAL ACCESS AND GOVERNMENT ACCESS CHANNEL 

BY DMEA UTILITIES SERVICES, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, 

TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA (this “MOU”) is made and entered into this _____ day of 

December, 2018, by and between the Town of Paonia, a Colorado statutory town, (the “Town”); 

and DMEA Utilities Services, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Elevate”), regarding 

the provision of a public access, educational access and government access channel by DMEA to 

the Town.  Hereinafter, DMEA or the Town shall be referred to individually as “Party” or 

combined as the “Parties.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the passage of Town of Paonia Ordinance No. 2018-05, the Town 

provided to Elevate a cable franchise wherein Elevate shall deliver video programming or other 

programming service (“Cable Service”) to subscribers within the Town (the “Franchise 

Agreement”); and  

 

WHEREAS, Elevate is willing to provide, and the Town desires to use, a dedicated channel on 

the Cable Service to provide public access, educational access and government access. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations hereinafter set 

forth, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Town and Elevate agree as follows: 

 

I. 

PEG ACCESS 

 

For so long as Ordinance 2018-05 is in effect, Elevate shall make available to the Town one 

downstream channel for public access, educational access, and government access (“PEG 

Access”).  The Town will be solely responsible for the production of all content, the proper 

formatting of all content and the delivery of all content that it wishes to broadcast. The required 

content can either be a live digital feed or a digital recording provided to Elevate in digital 

standard definition format, or up to 1080 digital high definition format. The Town will deliver 

content to Elevate via the Town’s internet service at a minimum upload rate of 100 mbps.  

 

 

II. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

1.1  Effect.  This MOU shall remain in effect for so long as Elevate operates Cable Services 

within the Town, in accordance with Town of Paonia Ordinance No. 2018-05, and the Franchise 

Agreement is in effect.   

45



Elevate Public Access MOU Page 2 of 2 

 

1.2  Assignment. Neither Party to this MOU shall voluntarily or involuntarily assign, 

delegate, subcontract, pledge, hypothecate or encumber any right, duty, obligation or interest, in 

whole or in part, in or to this MOU without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

 

1.3  Waiver. The waiver of any breach of any of the provisions of this MOU by either 

Party shall not constitute a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by that Party, either of 

the same, or of another provision of this MOU, or of the Franchise Agreement. 

 

1.4  No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this MOU is 

intended or shall be construed to confer upon or to give any person other than the Parties hereto 

any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this MOU. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this MOU have caused their names to be 

affixed by proper officers hereof, as of the date and year first above written. 

 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, a 

Municipal Corporation 

 

      By:________________________________ 

      CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

       DMEA UTILITIES SERVICES, LLC, a  

       Colorado limited liability company 

 

By:________________________________ 

       JASEN BRONEC, President 

 

46



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Ordinance 2019-01 De-Annexation/Disconnection Municipal Code Addition 

Summary:   

Second read and adoption of Municipal Code Amendment. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA ADDING CHAPTER 15, ARTICLE 2 - DISCONNECTION TO 

THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is 

a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is a statutory right for a citizen to apply for disconnection from a statutory 

town, pursuant to C.R.S. 31-12-501, et. seq.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the community and 

the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town to amend the Town Code to add 

this disconnection provision to the Municipal Code.    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   

 

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in support of the 

enactment of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment of Town Code.  

 

Sec. 15-2-10 through 15-2-80 shall be added to the Town Code as follows: 

 

Sec. 15-2-10 Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Article 2 is intended to provide for policies and procedures for the 

disconnection of lands from the corporate boundaries of the Town of Paonia.   

 

Sec. 15-2-20 Citizen Petition for Disconnection 

 

When the owner of a tract of land within and adjacent to the municipal boundary of the 

Town of Paonia desires to have said tract disconnected from the Town, said owner shall 

file a petition for disconnection with the Town Administrator, to be reviewed by the 

Town of Paonia Board of Trustees for the passage of an ordinance disconnecting the 

applicant’s property from the Town of Paonia.   

 

Sec. 15-2-30 Contents of Petition 

 

Any petition for disconnection shall include all of the following materials:  

48



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

(1) The name and address of the property owner. 

 

(2) Completed petition for disconnection form provided by the Town. 

 

(3) A legal description of the property. 

 

(4) A list of the names and property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the 

property.  

 

(5) The location of all ways of ingress to and egress from the property. 

 

(6) Service and refuse collection areas for the property. 

 

(7) A title policy indicating that the property is free and clear of all ownership 

disputes, liens or encumbrances whatsoever which would be impaired by the 

disconnection of the property.   

 

(8) A copy of the notice of disconnection provided to Delta County Board of County 

Commissioners.  

 

(9) A copy of the notice of disconnection provided to any affected special district as 

defined under C.R.S.§ 31-12-501.  

 

(10) Payment of the petition fee. 

 

(11) A statement from the petitioner as to how they were annexed into the Town, 

including payment of tap fees and annexation costs.    

 

Sec. 15-2-40 Other Governmental or Agency Comment Period 

 

Not more than thirty (30) days after the Town Administrator has received a petition for 

disconnection and confirmed that the petition meets the requirements of Sec. 15-2-30, in 

accordance with C.R.S. § 31-12-501, the Delta County Board of County Commissioners, 

and the Board of Directors of any affected special district may request a meeting with the 

owner and the Town Administrator, as an appointee for the Town of Paonia, to discuss 

and address any negative impacts on Delta County that would result from the 

disconnection. If such meeting is requested, the petitioner and the Town Administrator 

shall meet with either the Delta County Board of County Commissioners, or its 

appointee, or the Board of any affected special district, or its appointee, not more than 

thirty (30) days after the meeting was requested.  Failure by either the Delta County 

Board of County Commissioners or the Board of any affected special district to request a 

49



 

Page 3 of 4 

meeting constitutes an acknowledgment by the particular Board that the disconnection 

will not adversely affect Delta County or the special district, as applicable. 

 

Sec. 15-2-50 Planning Commission Review  

 

After the thirty (30) day period as defined in Sec. 15-2-40 has expired, the Town 

Administrator shall refer this matter to the Town of Paonia Planning Commission.  The 

Town Planning Commission shall then review the petition for disconnection to discuss 

and address any negative impacts on the Town and on Delta County that would result 

from the disconnection. The Planning Commission shall then provide its recommendation 

to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Sec. 15-2-60 Board of Trustee Review 

 

After review by the Planning Commission, the Board of Trustees shall give due 

consideration to the disconnection petition taking into consideration any comments 

provided by the Planning Commission and any other governmental entity in accordance 

with Sec. 15-2-40.  In the event it is the opinion of the Board of Trustees that the best 

interests of the Town of Paonia will not be prejudiced by the disconnection of the subject 

property, the Board of Trustees shall enact an ordinance effecting such disconnection.  In 

reviewing a disconnection petition, the Board shall consider if they petitioner received 

any water or sewer tap rates at lower rate in the event they were annexed into the Town; 

and, in such event, the Town may require that the applicant pay the full water and sewer 

tap rates upon disconnection.   

 

Sec. 15-2-70 Effect of Disconnection  

 

In the event the Board of Trustees enacts an ordinance for disconnection, it is 

immediately effective upon the required filing with the Delta County Clerk and Recorder 

to accomplish the disconnection, and two certified copies thereof shall be filed by the 

Clerk in the Office of the County Clerk and Recorder of the county in which such tract 

lies. 

 

Sec. 15-2-80 Taxes 

 

Any real property disconnected in accordance with this Article shall not be exempt from 

the payment of any taxes or utilities lawfully assessed against it for the purpose of paying 

any indebtedness lawfully contracted by the Town of Paonia while such land was within 

the limits of the Town of Paonia.   

 

 

 

 

50



 

Page 4 of 4 

Section 3.  Severability. 

 

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application 

thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the 

other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 

application, and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4.  Ordinance Effect. 
 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed; provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances heretofore repealed or superseded, and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect on February 18, 2019.     

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Board of 

Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado on the 11
th

 day of December 2018. 

 

 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, this 8
th

 day of January 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By: 

 

______________________________ 

      CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

51



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

December 20, 2018 
 

 

Aaron W. Papke, dba Thomas Waldo’s – Transfer of Ownership – Liquor 

License 

Summary:   

Aaron W. Papke, dba Thomas Waldo’s has entered into an agreement to include additional ownership 

for the business located at 240 Grand Avenue – Basement and form the limited liability corporation – 

Thomas Waldo’s Tavern, LLC. All documents have been provided, all fees and forms have been 

submitted. No issues noted from the police Chief. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Resolution 2019-01 – Designating Official Posting Location and Official 

Publication Newspaper 

 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83



 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-01 
 
 

DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC PLACE FOR THE POSTING OF NOTICES OF PUBLIC 
MEETINGS AND THE OFFICIAL PUBLICATION NEWPAPER OF GENERAL CIRULATION 
FOR THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO. 
 
 
WHEREAS, during the 1991 Legislative session, the Colorado State Legislature passed legislation 
under Senate Bill 33 providing for requirements of municipal governments, as well as other local public 
bodies, concerning public meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, C.R.S. 24-6-402, as amended by Senate Bill 33, provides that timely notice of any public 
meeting be posted in a designated public place within the boundaries of the local public body no less 
than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the holding of any such meeting; and 
WHEREAS, all public bodies are required by state law to publish certain notices in newspaper(s) of 
general circulation; and 

 
WHEREAS, all public bodies are required to designate annually at its first regular meeting the place or 
places where such public notices are to be posted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, that notices of all public meetings requiring a minimum of 
twenty-four (24) hours prior notice by posting at a designated public place pursuant to Senate Bill 33 
(C.R.S. 24-6-402) shall be posted in the following place: 
 

Town Hall, 214 Grand Avenue, Paonia, Colorado 
 
   The Official Publication newspaper of general circulation is: 
 

 Delta County Independent (DCI), Delta, Colorado 
 
 

ADOPTED this 8
th

 day of January 2019, by the Town Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia. 

 

    

     TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

     ______________________________________   

     Charles Stewart, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                   

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 
 

84



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Resolution 2019-02 – Mutual of Omaha 457 (b) Plan Amendment  

 

Summary:   

An amendment to the Town of Paonia Staff retirement plan, following the Personnel Guide 

designating what hours are considered part-time, excluding temporary employees, and modifying to 

allow larger employee contributions. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



CM06324 / Amendment 2018-1  

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-02 

  
AMENDMENT NUMBER 2018-01 TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUTUAL OF OMAHA 457(B) 

PLAN. 

 
 

Town of Paonia (the “Employer”) hereby adopts this Resolution for Amendment Number 2018-01 to 

Town of Paonia 457(b) Plan (the “Plan”) on the date below. 

 

WHEREAS, the Employer previously approved the Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Employer reserves the right to amend said Plan from time to time; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to amend the Plan to modify the definition of Excluded Employees and 

change the Non-Elective Contribution from fixed to discretionary. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, effective January 1, 2019, the Plan is amended by replacing the Adoption Agreement 

section(s) as noted below with the following language: 

 

6. EXCLUDED EMPLOYEES (1.10). The following Employees are Excluded Employees and are not 

eligible to participate in the Plan 

(Choose one of a. or b.): 

a. [ ] No exclusions. All Employees are eligible to participate. 

b. [X] Exclusions. The following Employees are Excluded Employees (Choose one or more of 1. 

through 4.): 

1. [X] Part-time Employees. The Plan defines part-time Employees as Employees 

who normally work less than 32 hours per week. 

2. [ ] Hourly-paid Employees. 

3. [X] Leased Employees. The Plan excludes Leased Employees. 

4. [  ]    Specify:  . 

 

17. NONELECTIVE CONTRIBUTIONS (1.19). The Non-Elective Contributions under Election 5c. are 

made as follows: (Choose one): 

a. [ ] Discretionary - Pro-Rata. An amount the Employer in its sole discretion may determine. 

b. [   ]    Fixed - Pro Rata.  % of Compensation. 

c. [X] Other. A Non-Elective Contribution may be made as follows: 
  Discretionary - Pro-Rata per employee classification. The amount of the Non-Elective 

Contribution, if any, will be determined by the Employer in its sole discretion, for each of the 

following employee classifications: Management, Hourly, Public Safety. 

Except as amended hereinabove, the Plan shall remain unchanged, and as amended herein, shall continue in 

full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has executed this Amendment this 31
st
 day of December 2018. 

 
86



CM06324 / Amendment 2018-1  

The undersigned authorized representative of Town of Paonia (the “Employer”) hereby certifies that the 

resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees on the date specified below, and that such resolutions 

have not been modified or rescinded as of the signature date below. 

 

RESOLVED, that Town of Paonia 457(b) Plan ("Plan") be amended as described in Amendment Number 

2018-1 effective January 1, 2019; and 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the appropriate officers are authorized, empowered and directed to do all 

acts and things, including adopting a Plan amendment, necessary or desirable to effectuate the actions 

authorized herein. 

 

 
ADOPTED this 8th day of January 2019, by the Town Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia. 
 
    
     TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
 
     ______________________________________   
     Charles Stewart, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 

87



CM06324 / Amendment 2018-1  

TOWN OF PAONIA 457(B) PLAN 

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL MODIFICATION 

 

To: Participants and Beneficiaries: 

 
Town of Paonia 457(b) Plan (the “Plan”) has been amended. This is a summary of the modification that was made, effective January 1, 
2019. You should read this summary along with the Summary Plan Description that we have already distributed to you. If there is a 
discrepancy between the terms of the amended Plan and this Summary of Material Modification, the provisions of the Plan will control. 
Please file this Summary of Material Modification with your copy of the Summary Plan Description. 

 
Changes to the Plan 

 

Am I eligible to participate in the Plan? 
 

If you are a member of a class of employees identified below, you are not an eligible employee for Plan purposes. The employees who 
are excluded are: 

 

 employees who normally work less than 32 hours per week. 
 

 leased employees. 
 

Independent contractors are not eligible to participate in the Plan. 

 
 
 

What is the Employer non-elective contribution? 
 

A non-elective contribution is a contribution the Employer makes to the Plan which is unrelated to whether you make any elective 
deferrals in that year. 

 

The non-elective contribution will be: Discretionary - Pro-Rata per employee classification. The amount of the Non-Elective Contribution, 
if any, will be determined by the Employer in its sole discretion, for each of the following employee classifications: Management, Hourly, 
Public Safety. 

 
Allocation conditions. You will always share in the non-elective contribution regardless of the amount of service you complete 
during the Plan Year. 

 
 
 

If you have any questions, please contact the Plan Administrator. 

88



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel 

Files and Medical Information Privacy – (Discussion Only) 

Summary:   

Discussion regarding potential modifications to the Personnel Handbook following Court ruling. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89



COPIED DIRECT FROM PERSONNEL HANDBOOK - CF 
 

  202 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES  

 

Effective Date: 6/01/2018 Revision Date: 

The Town maintains a personnel file on each employee. The personnel file includes such information as 

the employee's job application, resume, records of training, documentation of performance appraisals 

and salary increases, and other employment records. 

 

Personnel files are the property of the Town, and access to the information they contain is restricted, 

subject to the Colorado Open Records Act. Generally, only supervisors and management personnel of 

the Town who have a legitimate reason to review information in a file are allowed to do so. All 

personnel records are maintained in compliance with the laws related to public records. No documents 

shall be released from a personnel record, except as required by the Open Records Act, without a 

written request from the employee designating the documents to be released and the person or entity 

to which the release is to be made, and indemnifying and holding harmless the Town from liability, 

claims, and demands resulting from such release. 

 

Employees who wish to review their own file should contact the Town Clerk. With reasonable advance 

notice, employees may review their own personnel files, except for any previous employer 

recommendations or references contained therein, in the Town's offices and in the presence of a Town 

representative. An employee shall have the opportunity to submit a letter to the file, responding to or 

rebutting information contained in his/her file. 

 

 

  209 MEDICAL INFORMATION PRIVACY  

 

Effective Date: 6/01/2018 Revision Date: 

The Town is committed to maintaining and protecting the confidentiality of our employees' personal 

information in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The 

Town Clerk is the designated Privacy Officer for all employee medical information. 

 

 

 

90



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 2, 2019 
 

 

Bill Brunner – Presentation to the Board  

Summary:   

A request to be on the agenda from Mr. Brunner – a presentation “reviewing documents involved in 

Custodian v Brunner.” 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



92



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

January 4, 2019 
 

 

 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

93


	Top
	1. Announcements - Christmas Lights Winners
	ASF - Christmas Lights Winner.docx

	2. Consent Agenda
	ASF - Consent Agenda.docx
	12112018 Town Board Minutes.docx
	12272018 Special Meeting Minutes.docx
	Consent Agenda - KPP SEP_Redacted.pdf

	3. Planning Commission
	ASF - Planning Commission Seat.docx
	P&amp;Z - Foguth_Redacted.pdf
	P&amp;Z - Brunner_Redacted.pdf
	P&amp;Z - Bradford_Redacted.pdf

	7. 2018 Disbursements
	ASF - 2018 Disbursements.docx
	2018 Final Disbursements-Redacted.pdf
	Final 2018 Account Analysis.pdf

	8. DMEA MOU
	ASF - DMEA Mou.docx
	Elevate Public Access MOU 2018.docx

	9. Ord 2019-01
	ASF - Ordinance 2019-01 Municipal Code Amendment.docx
	2019-01 Disconnection-DeAnnexation.doc

	10. Thomas Waldo&apos;s Ownership Change
	ASF - Thomas Waldo&amp;#39;s License Change.docx
	Thomas Waldos License Transfer - Redacted.pdf

	11. Res 2019-01
	ASF - Resolution 2019-01 Designated Newspaper of Record.docx
	2019-01 Public Postings.doc

	12. Res 2019-02
	ASF - Resolution 2019-02 Mutual of Omaha 457(B) Plan.docx
	Resolution 2019-02 Retirement Amendment.docx

	13. Personnel Handbook Amendment
	ASF - Personnel Handbook.docx
	Personnel Handbook Amendment Discussion.docx

	14. Brunner
	ASF - Bill Brunner RTBOA.docx
	Brunner Request.pdf

	Bottom

